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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT .

TO THE MEMBERS OF ORIOLE Dr. FRESH HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of ORIOLE Dr.
FRESH HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (‘the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2017, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting poiicies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial
position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant o the preparation and presentation of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements, that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our respensibility is to express an opinion an these Standalone Ind AS financial statements
based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. We conducted our audit of
the Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, inciuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company's
preparation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evalualing the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as
financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given o
us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generaily accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the stale of affairs
(financial position) of the Company as at 31 March, 2017, and its loss {financial performance
including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016
and the transition date opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2015 included in these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory
financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditor, whose audit report for the year ended 31
March 2016 & 31 March 2015 dated 16 June 2016 & 08 June 2015 respectively expressed
an unmodified opinicn on those Standalone financial statemenis, as adjusted for the
differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS,
which have been audited by us. '

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above maltter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, and on the basis of
such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in "Annexure
I” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that;

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which fo the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31° March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) We are enclosing herewith a report in Annexure |l for our opinion on adequacy of
internal financial controls system in place in the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financiai position in its Standalone Ind AS financial statements. Refer
Note 26 to the financial statements.

il. According to the information and explanations provided to us, the
Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iif. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred during the year, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund

by the Company.

iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures in Note no.32 of its
financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank
Notes (SBN) during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December
2016. Based on the audit procedures and relying on the management
representation, we report that the disclosures are in accordance with the
books of accounts and records maintained by the Company.

For APAS & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Regn No. 000340C
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ANNEXURE-1TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

i} Inrespect of its fixed assets:

a} The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
gquantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management
in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to
the size of the Company and nature of its assets. As in informed to us no material
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

c) Title deeds In respect of ail immovable properties are held in the name of the
comparny.

i) As explained to us physical verification has been conducted by the management at
reasonable intervals. We were explained that no material discrepancies have been
noticed on physical verification.

i) As informed to us the company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured, to the
companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act 2013.

iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186, wherever applicable, in respect of loans,
investments and guarantees given by the company. We are informed that the company
has not provided any security during the year.

v) According to the information and explanations given to us the company has not
accepted any deposits, in terms of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under.

vi} In respect of business activities of the company, maintenance of cost records has not
been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (I} of section 148 read
with rules framed thereunder of the Companies Act 2013.

vii) a) As per information and explanations given to us, the company is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. As
informed to us there are no outstanding statutory dues in arrears as at the last day of
the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

b} We have been informed that no unpaid disputed demands are outstanding in
respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, VAT or
Cess.




8/ 14, BASEMENT,
APAS CO’ KALKAJI EXTENSION

CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS NEW DELHI-110019

viii) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given
to us by the management, we are of the opinion that there is no default in repayment of
loans or borrowings to the financial institutions and banks as at the year end. There are
no loans from Government and the company has not issued any debentures.

ix) As explained to us term loans obtained during the year were applied for the purpose
for which the loans were obtained by the company. The company has not raised any
meney during the year by way initial or further public offer.

x) Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given
by the management, we report that, no fraud by the Company or on the company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit for
the year ended 31.03.2017.

xi} According to information and explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration
paid and provided by the company during the year is in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the
Companies Act 2013.

xii} The provisions of clause (xii) of the Order are not applicable as the company is not a
Nidhi Company as specified in the clause.

xiii} According to information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all
related party transactions are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Necessary disclosures have been made in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv}According to information and explanations given to us the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or debentures during the year.

xv) According to information and explanations given to us the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transaction with the director or any person connected with him
during the year.

xvi}ln our opinion, in view of its business activities, the company is not required to be
registered under section 451A of Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For APAS & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Regn No. 000340C
(

PLACE : NEW DELHI (SUMIT KATHURIA)
DATED : e 13, 20\F PARTNER

M No. 520078
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ANNEXURE- Il TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ORIOLE Dr.
FRESH HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31%' March 2017 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsihility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and compleleness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financiai controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due {o fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence l/we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financiai statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on “Audit of Internat Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For APAS & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Regn No. 009340C

¢
W\
PLACE : NEW DELHI . (SUMIT KATHURIA)

DATED : Tluwe A3, 201 PARTNER
M No. 520078




Oriole Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

Note March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rz in iakhs
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 4,521.02 4,620,23 4,718.35
(b) Intangible assets 4 0.27 0,82 2.42
{c) Financial asscts 5
(1Y Other non-current financial asscis 180.27 169.76 157.45
() Non-cwrent tax assels (not) 41.25 42.82 22.34
4,742.81 4,833.63 4,900,56
Current assets
(a) Inventories 6 9.49 9.78 2.33
(b) Financial assets 7
(i) Trade receivables 34.79 50.79 49.24
{ii) Cash and Cash eguivalents 66.45 29.45 34.39
{c )Other current assets 8 44.03 26.24 18.93
204.76 116.26 111.89
Totul Assets 4.947.57 4,940 89 5,012.45
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Sharc capital 9 20.00 20.00 20,00
(b} Other Equity 10 178.16 224.13 189.25
Total Equity 198.16 244.13 209.23
Liabitities
Non-current liabilitics
(a) Financial liakilities Il
{i) Borrowings 3,738.87 1,257.08 2,229
{ii) Other financial liabilities 19.56 19.20 19.20
(b) Long termy provisions 12 2,75 2.07 2.68
3,761,18 1,278.35 2,251.79
Current liabilitices
(a) Financiai liabilitics 13
(i) Borrowings 848.34 3,318.34 2.153.84
(ii) Trade payablcs 70.09 57.96 65.18
(i1i} Other Current financiat fiabilitics 44.40 29.68 311.03
{b) Other cwrent liabilitics 14 22,54 18.67 18.51
{c ) Provisions 12 2.86 2.70 2.85
988.23 3,427.41 2,551.41
Total Liabilities 4,749.41 4,705.76 4.803.20
Total Equity and Liabilities 4,947.57 4,949.89 501245
Summary of significant accounting policies 22

The accompanying notes are an ictegral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For APAS & Co.
Firm Registration MNo. 000340C
Chartered Accouma\]&s

WX

SUMYT KATHURTA
Parter
Membership No. 520078

Place : New Delli
Date : June 13, 2017

Coinpal

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Seqretary

\e

Rajesh«ﬁ'

Dirccior
DIN: 05251730

Kapil Sharma
Chief Finaneial Officer




__Oriole Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period cnded 31 March, 2017

Note March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
- Rs in lakhs Rs in lzkhs
Revenue from operations ] 833.62 806.51
Other income 16 27.87 273t
Total Income 861.49 §33.82
Expenses
Cost of food and beverages consumed 17 72.61 73.1
Employee benefits expense 18 187.71 160.41
Other expenses 19 283.91 277.69
Totzl expenses 544.23 51011
FEarnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 317.26 322.71
amattisation (EBITDA)
Finance costs 20 268.10 192,04
Depreciation and amortization expense 21 187.59 109.76
Finance Income 22 (13.42) (12.67)
Profit/{toss) before tax {45.01) 33.58
Tax cxpense:
(1) Current {ax 0.82 -
.82 -
Profit/(loss) for the year (45.83) 33.58
Other comprehensive incomne
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans {0.14) 1.30
Tatal Comprehensive Income/Loss for the year {45.97) 34.88
Earnings/{loss) per equity share:
(1) Basic 23 {22.92) 1.68
(2) Diluted 23 (22.92) 1.68
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For APAS & Coe, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Firm Registration No. 000340C Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
|

Qe %@W

Partner le Time Director

Membership No. 520078 07384326

r
Nilkhil gethi
CompanhSegretary

Place : New Delhi
Date : June 13, 2017

(W

Rajesh Kumar
Director

DEN: 05251730

A

Kapil Sharma
Chief Financial Officer




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
_Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and No. of shares Amount

fully paid (Rs in 1akhs)
At1 April 2015 200,000 20.00
Issue of share capital - -
At 31 March 2016 200,000 20.00
Issue of share capital - -
At 31 March 2617 200,060 20.00

B. Other Equity
For the year ended 31 March, 2017

Ry in lakhs

Reserves and Surplus

Capital reserve Securities Premium Retained Earnings Other equity
Balance at 1 April 2015 622.10 - (432.85) 189.25
Total Comprehensive Incoie for the year - - 34.88 34.88
Balance at 31 March 2016 622.10 - (397.97) 224.13
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - (45.9N (45.97)
Balance at 31 March 2017 622.10 - (443.94) 178.16

Summary of significant accounting policics 2.2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Oricle Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited

For APAS & Co.
Firm Registration No. 000340C
Chartered Accountants

ol
SUMIT KATHURIA

Partner
Membership No. 520078

Place : New Delhi
Date : June 13, 2017

\oom
Raﬁaﬂﬁnar

Director
DIN: 05251730

A

Kapil Sharma
Chief Financial Officer




Oriole Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited
. Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2017
{Rs in lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31, 2016
(Rs in lakhs)

A. Cash flow from operating activitics

Profit/(loss) before tax (45.01) 33.58
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit/{(loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 107.59 109.76
Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments) (13.42) (12.67)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) 262.47 186.52
Provision for gratuity 0.64 0.42
Provision for leave encashment (0.00} 0.17
Excess provision/ credit balances written back .17 0.10
Provision for doubiful debts 36 1.36
Loss on salc of Preperty, Plant & Equipment 0,82 0.25
Operating profit before working capital changes: 313.62 315.49
Movements in working capital;
Change in trade receivables (34.36) {2.91)
Change in loans and advances and other current assets (28.29) (19.61)
Change in inventories 0.29 {0.45)
Change in liabitities and provisions 18.40 (3.51)
Cash Generated fram Operations 269.66 293.01
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 0.75 {20.47)
Net eash {low from operating activities (A} 270.41 272.54
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (8.73) (16.37)
Proceeds/(Repayments) from sale of Propetty, plant and equipment 0.07 0.08
Interest received 13.42 12.67
Net Cash flows from investing activities (B) 4.76 2.38
€ Cash flows from/(used in) finaneing activities
Procceds from long terin borrowings (20.00) (129.67)
Interest paid (218.17) (150.19)
Net Cash frem/(used in) financing activities (C) {238.17) (279.86)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 37.06 (4.94)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2945 34.39
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 66.45 29.45
Compaonents of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand 1.19 2.27
Balances with Scheduled Banks in
- Current accounts 65.26 27.18
66.45 2043

Total cash and cash equivalents

Summary of significant accounting policies

22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of cven datc

For APAS & Co,
Firm Registration No. 000340C
Chartered Accountants

L3

Ve

SUMIT KATHURIA
Partner
Membership No. 520078

Placc : New Delhi
Date : June 13, 2017

ATy

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

e

ole Time Director

\"\A...
Rajeﬂ@n;"

Director
DIN: 05251730

far

Kapil Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 07384326




Oriole Pr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

1.

2.1

22

(a)

Corporate Information

Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in
India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The
registered office of the company is located at B-6/17, Safdarjung Enclave New Delhi-110029.

The principal activities of the Company is to carry out business of developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc. under the brand
name of Red Fox Hotel.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of directors on June 13, 2017.

Basis of preparation
Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the
first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note 31 for information
on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost
convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

¢ Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

« i is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o liis held primarily for the purpose of trading

o It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(b)

(c)

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and labilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Foreign currencies
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
tecognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
Hability takes place either:
¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
fowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabikities
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¢ Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
¢ level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market Knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management
decides, after discussion with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and
inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy .

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant nofes.

¢ Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 24)
¢ Contingent consideration (note 26)

s Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 28)

+ Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 28)

C)] Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue arrangements, The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met
before revenue is recognized.

Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather,
it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government.
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.
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Rooms, Restaurant, Banquets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VAT) and Luxury Tax. Shortfall of revenue over the billed as at the year-end is carried
in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax / VAT.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial assets
classified as available for sale, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is included in finance
income in the income statement.

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Taxes
Tax expense represents current income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income fax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Cwrrent tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the lability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits (including MAT credit) and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused fax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

loss

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, defetred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)

that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in

correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same

taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satistying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts
and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained

ahout facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date,

If the carrying aniount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OCI capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All

other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

H Property, plant and equipment

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the
previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and

equipment (See Note 31)

Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria

are met.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and

maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Assets Useful life considered

(SLM)
Plant & Machinery 15 Year
Building 60 Years
Electrical fittings 10 Years
Electrical Equipments 10 Years
Office Equipmeitits 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Computers 3 Years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Intangible assets

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAFP,
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible asset (See Note 31)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful life.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount
capitalised represents the actul borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

®

4]

out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such
current investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds
used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated
using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company
during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assefs is
interrupted.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial kiability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised
cost of a financial liability after considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument.

Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to malke sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annuval impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment en inventories, are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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For assets excluding geodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
{ast impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

(k) Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a

finance cost.

()] Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined countribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the schere is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment

will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial

valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. Gratuity Hability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is

expenses off at the time of payment of premium,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
¢ The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset.The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as

an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:

» Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on

curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
o Net interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuvation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due. Thete are no other obligations other than the

contribution payable to the respective trusts.

The company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional
legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the saine is

presented as non-current lability.

(m) Financial instraments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profil or loss, transaction costs that are atiributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits

to purchase or sell the asset.

SL{bS(:'Q'MEITI measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following

categories:
¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost
« Debt nstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

s Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss

(FVIPL)

 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

¢ FEquity instruments in subsidiaries carried at cost

Debt instruments at amortised cost
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A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assefs are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {(EIR)
method, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount er premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivable
etc, For more information on receivables, refer to Note 7.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPIL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument
is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI eriteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial assel

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

e Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
« All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company {0 track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is nsed. If,
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts fo
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (ot reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance shect presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.¢., as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the
asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the
gross canying amount.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OClL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating
an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a
timely basis.
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The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial
assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial gnarantee contracts and derivative financial instraments.

Stibsequent measurement

The measurement of financia! liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial Habilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for frading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or fosses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&J.. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain ot loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and
foss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 11 & 13.




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(n)

(0)

(m

Financial guarantee

Financial guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of group companies are designated as
‘Insurance Contracts’. The Company assess at the end of each reporting period whether its
recognised insurance liahilities (if any) ate adequate, using current estimates of future cash
flows under its insurance contracts. If that assessment shows that the carrying amount of

its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the entire
deficiency is recognised in profit ot loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial lability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instriments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a cwrrently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Redeemable preference shares

Redeemable preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the
terms of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are initially recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three montlis or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017
and has amended the following standard.
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Amendment to Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows

The amendments to Ind AS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, On initial application
of the amendment, entities are not required to provide comparative information for preceding
periods. These amendments ave effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2017. Application of this amendments will not have any recognition and measurement impact.
However, it will require additional disclosure in the financial statements.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial
statements is being evaluated.

Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss.
The company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing oper: ations. In
its measurement, the company does not include depreciation and amortization expense,
interest income, finance costs and tax expense.




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

24,

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilitiesaffected in future
periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
OCCUL.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
other valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that

taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

)

®

Financial assets

Other non-current financial assets

Security Deposits
Other bank balances

As at As at As at
March 31, 2007 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
10.21 11.47 i1.44
170.06 158.29 146.02
180.27 169.76 157.45
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6 Inventories
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Food and beverages (excluding liquor and wine)
Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others
TFotal

As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rsin lakhs
3.03 2.70 2.8
6.46 7.08 7.16
9.49 9.78 9.33
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7 Financial assets As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Ry in lakhs Rs in lakhs

(i) Trade receivables

Trade reccivables 84.79 50,79 49.24
84,79 S0.79 49.24

Break-up for security details:
Trade receivables

Secured, considered goed - - -

Unsecured, considered geod 85,76 51.41 49.79

Doubtful 1.30 1.30 -
87.06 52,70 49.7%

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Unsecured, considered good 0.97 0.61 0.56

Doubtfidl 1.30 1.30 -
2.27 1.91 0.56

Tatal Trade receivables 34.79 50.79 49.24

No trade or other receivable are due from directors ar other officers of tle company cither severally or jointly with any other pegson. Nor any trade or other
receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a dircctor or a member,
The interest free eredit period given to customers is upto 90 days.

As At As At As Al
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in Inkhs Rs in Jakhs Rs in lakhs
{iiy Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks
On current & cash credit accounts 65.26 27.18 33.94
Cash on hand 1.19 2.27 0.45
66.45 2945 34.3%

At March 31, 2017, the Company had available Rs. Nii {March 31, 2016: Rs. Nil, April 1, 205: Nil) of undrawn committed borrowing facilitics.

8 Other current assets . As At As At As At
ivinrch 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 4.90 373 6.52
Acerued revenne 28,93 5.20 -
Balance with statutory/ government authoritics 3.24 7.60 -
Prepaid Expenses 6.97 9.70 12.41

|
Teotal 44.03 26.24 18.93 ‘
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9

LEquity Share capital

Authorised Share Capital

AL 1 April 2015
Increasef(decrease) during the year
At 31 March 2016
Increase/{decrease) during the year
At 31 March 2017

Terms/rights attached 1o equity shares

Equily shares

No. of shares Rs in lakhs
200,000 26,00
200,(;00 2{):(10
ZUI],U-IJI} 20:00

The company has only one class of equity shares having face valuc of Rs. 10 per share. Bach holder of equity shares is entitled 10 ene vote per share. In the event of liguidation of the
company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 10 receive Temaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in propottion to the

number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

The preference shares are not convertible into equity shares and are reflected in financial liabilities.

Issued cquity capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issucd, subseribed and fully paid

At 1 April 2015
lncreasef{decrease) during the year
At 31 Mareh 2016
Increase/(decrease) during the year
At 31 Mareh 2017

Shares held by holding company

Equity shares of Re. I0 each Tully paid up
Lemon Tree Holels Limited

Details of shareholders holding mere than 8% shares in the company

Equity shares of Tte, 10 each Tully paid up
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Mo, of shares s in 1akhs
206,000 20.00
200,000 20.00
200,000 20,00
As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
No, of shares Rs in Iakhs No. ol shares Rs in Iakhs
200,000 20,00 240,000 20.00
As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
No. of shares % held Ne. of shares % held
200,000 100.06% 200,000 100.00%

The Company las not issued Bonus Share, Share for consideration other than Cash and has not bought back shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.
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10 Other equity
Retained Earnings

At 1 April 2015
Profit/(loss) for the year
At 31 March 2018
Profitloss) for the year
At 31 March 2017

Capital Reserve ( Equity Compaonent of Reedemable Preference shares )

At 1 April 2015
Increase/(decrease) during the year
At 31 March 2016
erease/(decrense) during the year
At 31 Mareh 2017

Otlier reserves
Retained Eamings
Capital Reserve { Equity Component of Reedemable Preference shares }

Rs in [akhs

(132.35)
34.88
(39797
{45.97)
(443.99)

Rs in lakhs

622,10

422,10

622,10

As At As At As AL
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lalths Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

(443.94) {397.97) {432.85)
622.10 622.10 622.10
178.16 224.13 189.25
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11 TIinancial linbilities

(i) Borrowings As at As at As at
Effective interest rate  Maturity  March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
% Rs in lakhs Ry in lakhs Ks in lakhs

Non-current horrowings

Term Loans

Indian rupec loans from Banks (Sccured)

Yes Bank Limited (Refer note 1 below) 9.50% 2029-2030 2,445,50 - -
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited {Refer note 2 below) 13.00% Prepaid - - 45,62

Rupce term loans from financial institutions

Tourism Fina Ci ti  Tndia Limited {Refi
ourtsm Finance Corporation o a Limited {Refer 13.50% Prepaid
note 3 below) - - 962.50

Liability component of financial instrument
Redeemuble preference shares (unsecured) 5.00% 2024-2026 1,293.37 1,257.08 1,221.79

(Refer notc 4 below)

Total non-current borrowings 3,738.87 1,257.08 2,229.91

Current borrowings

Term Loans

Current maturity of long tern loans

Yes Bank Limited (Refer note 1 below) 9.50% 2029-2030 12.50 - -
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note 2 below) 13.00% Prepaid - - 10.00

Rupee term louns from financial institutions

Tourism Finance Corporation of India Litsited {Refor 13.50% Propaid

nate 3 below) - - 275.00
Tetal current borrewings 12.50 - 285.00
Less: Amount clubbed uader “other current financial liabilitics™ (12.50) - (285.00)

Net current borrowings

Term loans
1.’ Rupee Term Ioan of Rs. 2500 lakhs from Yes Bank Lid has been availed during Financial Year 2016-17, the loan is repayable in 48 structural instaliments

including 12 menths of moratoriam period frem the fiest date of disbursement { April'16), the lean is sceured by:
A} First charge on all immoveabie assets of the Project (both present and future) owned by the Borrower
B)First Charge on all movcable fixed assets and current assets (both present and future) (including Escrow Account opened with YBL} of the Borrower;

C)Escrow of all receivables of the Project including security deposits,
D) Unconditional & Trrevocable Corporate Guarantee of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 1o remain valid during the entire tenor of Y BLfacilities

2. Rupece term loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank is repaid during carlicr year and consequently below mentioned charge has been satisfied and released:

A, A fust Subservient charge overall existing & future current assets of the borrower.

B, Trrevocable and unconditional personal guarantee of ong of the promoter of the company.

C. To Undertzake that Lease Rentals from Indian Overseas Bank against lease Agreement for the Property situated at Ground Floor , Plot -6, Keadli, Community
Centre, New Dcihi to be deposited with 1he Bank.

3. Rupee term loan from Tourism Finance Corporation of India Limited is repaid during the earlicr year and consequently below mentioned charge has been

satisfied and released: :

A. A first mortage of plot of land measuring 1800 sq. mirs{19368 sq. fi.) at Plot No. 6, Kondli Conununity Centre, Sector-A , Kondli, New Delhi with all the
buildings and structures thercon.

B. A first charge be way of hypothccation of all the mevables subject {o prior charge of bankers on Specificd movable assets for securing working capital
facilities.

C. Irrevocable and unconditional personal guarantee of one of the promoter of the company.

D. Corporate guarantee of Hotding Company

4. Liability component of compound financial instrument represent 5% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares. These redeemable preference shares were
allotted on 31.3.09 & redeemable at par on or after 1.8.2020 but not later than §5 years from date of allotment.




Oriole Dr, Tresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(if) Other financial Habilities

12

Sundry deposits

Provisions

Provision for gratuity
Current
Non-current

Provision for leave henefits
Current
Non-current

Total current
Total non-current

As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1,2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
19.56 19.20 19.20
19.56 19.20 19.20
As at Asgat Asg at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprif 1,2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
3.51 2.72 3.60
0.76 0.65 0.92
2,75 2.67 2.68
As at As at Asal
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1,2015
Ry in lalths Ry in lakhs Rs in lakhs
2.1 2,11 1,93
2.10 2.1 1.93
2.86 2.76 2.85
2,75 2.07 2.68




Oriole Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

i3 Financial liabilities

() Borrowings

Loan from related parties
0% lean from Lemon Tree Holcels Limited repayable on demand

(it} Trade payables
Trade Payables

-Micro and small enterprises
-Other than Micre and small enterprises

(iif) Other Current financial liabilitics
Current malurities of long-term botrowings
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Book overdraft
Outstanding dues of other creditors

14 Other current liabilifics

Advance from customers
Statutory Dues

As at
March 31, 2017
Rs in laklis

Asat
March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs

As at
Aprit 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs

848.34 3,318.34 2,153.84
848.34 3,318.34 2,153.84
Asat As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2G16 April 1, 2015

Rs in lakhs

Rs in lakhs

Rs in lakhs

70,09

57.96

65.18

70,09

57.96

65.18

As at
March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs

As at
March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs

As at
April |, 2015
s in lukhs

12.50 - 285.00
- - 7.96
- 11.65 -
3L90 18.03 18.08
44,40 20.68 311.03
Asat Asal Asat
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2010 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in Jakhs Rs in fakhs
6.84 5.19 4.67
15.70 13.48 13.84
22.54 i8.67 18.51
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15 Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations

Sale of products and services

- Room rental

- Food and beverage {excluding liquor and wing)
- Telephone and telex

- Other Services

Revenue from operations

16 Other income

Rental income
Excess provision/ credit balances written back

17 Cost of food and beverages consumed

(a) Censwnption of food & heverages excluding liquor & wine
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of food and beverage consumed

1

o«

Employee benefil expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident lund and other finds
Gratuity expense

Leave compensation expenses

Staff welfare expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs in Iakhs Rs in lakhs
585.85 555.01
168.50 169,81
1.3 1.49
77.95 80.20
833.62 836.51

VFor the year ended
March 31, 2017
Rs in lalkhs

For the year ended
March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs

27.70 27.22
017 0.10
27.87 27.31

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

s in lakhs Rs in lukhs
2.7% 2,18
72.94 73.54
75.64 75,72
3.03 2.70
72.61 73.01
72.61 73.01

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Rs in kalchs Rs in lakhs
165.26 136,73
711 6.29
0.64 0.42
(0.00) 0.53
14.74 16.44
187.71 160.4 1
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19 Other expenses

20

2

Consumption of stores, cutiery, crockery, linen, provisions and others

Power and fuel

Linen & umiform washing and lmndry expenses
Guest transportation

Cable TV expenses

Repair and maintenance

- Buildings

- Plant and machinery

- Others

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Comaomnication costs

Printing and slationery

Traveling and conveyance

Advertising and sales promotion
Electronic Distribution

Commission -other than sole selfing agent
Security and cleaning expenses
Membership and subseriptions

Legal and protessional fees

Loss on sale of fixed assets

Provision for doubtfid debt, loans, advances etc,

Payment to auditors
Miscellancous cxpenses

Payinent to anditor
As auditor

for other services

Finance costs

Isterest

- on term loans from hanks
- on ncome 1ax

- ofs others

Bank charges (including commisgion on credit card colicction)

Depreciation and amaortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangible asscts

22 Finance income

Interest Income on :
-Bank Deposits
-Others

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

23,21 19.96
100.01 102,37
013 243
28,57 2533
2,29 2,06
1.58 8,57
11.80 9.87
14.95 8.19
22.60 19.88
0.45 2.15
1905 16.94
.94 340
1007 9.89
0.88 1.02
5,50 3.60
5,76 7.39
20,45 21,61
2,38 0.41
7.08 5.85
0,82 0.25
36 1.36
.55 0.33
2.87 4.85
283.91 271.69
.55 0.25
- 0.08
0,55 0.33

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2017
Its in lakhs

For the vear ended
March 31, 2016
Rs in fakhs

226,17 151.24
0.00 Q.00
36,81 35.28
5.13 54%
168.10 192,04

For the year ended
March 31, 2017
Bs in lalchs

For the year ended
March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs

107.05 t08.16
0.55 .60
107.5% 109,76

For the year ended
March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs

For the year ended
March 31, 2016
Rs in Jakhs

12.08 12.67
1.33 -
13.42 12.67
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23 Earnings per share (Basic And Diluted)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.
Dilated EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable 1o equity holders of the Company (afler adjusting for interest on the

convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted averape number

of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Profit/{loss) attributable to equity holders {for basic and diluted) {RRs in Iakhs) {45.83) 33.58
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (for basic and diluted)* 200,000 200,000
Basic & Diluted EPS (22.92) 16.79

* The weighted average number of shares lakes into account Lhe weighted average effect of changes in share transactions dwring the year. There
have been no other transactions involvieg Equity shares or potential Equity shares belween the reporting date and the date of autherisation of
these financial stalements.
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25. Gratuity and other posi-employment benefit plans
Ry in lakhs

March 31,2017 March 31, 2016 April I, 2015

Gratuity plan 3.51 2.72 3.60
Total 3.51 2.72 3.60

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan . The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to
specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary
at retirement age.The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of
accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the Projected unit credit method.
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Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assels are as follows:

Unquoted investments:

March 31,

2017

March 31,

i 1
2016 April 1, 2015

Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC -

Total

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown

below:
Discount rate:
Pension plan

Future salary increases:
Pension plan

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

April 1, 2615

Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65:

Pension plan
Male
Female

6.70%

5.00%

%% A %
7.60% 7.70%

5.00% 5.00%

Years Years Years
60 60 60

60 60 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2017 is as shown below:

India gratuity plan:

Assumptions
Sensitivity Level

Impact on defined benefit
obligation

Assumptions
Sensitivity Level

Impact on defined benefit
obligation

March 31,
2017

March 31, 2017

March 31, March 31,
2017 2017

Discount rate

1% increase

0.11 0.12
March 31, March 31,
2016 2016

1% decrease

Future salary increases

1% increase 1% decrease

0.08 0.09
March 31, March 31,
2016 2016

Discount rate

1% increase 1% decrease

Future salary increases

1% increase 1% decrease

0.09 0.09

QY
"{’i"\\‘i
ELHI 'C_{ﬁ}
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Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Duration {Years) For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

1 0.78 0.68

2 0.71 0.56

3 0.67 047

4 .54 0.42

5 0.43 0.34

Above 5 1.40 1.12

Total expected payments 4.52 3.60

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years
(March 31, 2016: 5 years).

26, Commitments and contingencies

a. Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:
At March 31, 2017, the Company had NIL commitments (March 31, 2016: Rs NIL, April 1, 2015: Rs NIL)

b. Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

March 31, March 31, April
2017 2016 1,2015
(Rs. In Lacs) | (Rs. In Lacs) | (Rs. In Lacs
a. |Counter guarantees issued in respect of guarantees issued by (118.40) (118.40) (118.40)
company’s bankers (Net)




Oriole Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

27. Related Party Transactions

a) Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have
occurred or not,

Holding Company - Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Fellow subsidiary companies - Canary Hotels Private Limited
- Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited
- Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
- Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by - Dr. Fresh Assets Limited
key management personnel or their relatives

Key Management Personnel - Mr. Tarun Lakhanpal {Whole Time Director

wef. 1st June, 2015 to 17th July, 2015)

- Ms. Natasha Yashpal {Whole Time Director
w.e.f 1st January, 2016)

- Mr. Arjun Sawhny(Independent Director}

- Mr. Paramartha Saikia(Independent Director)

- Mr. Rajesh Kumar(Director)

- Mr. Bhushan Arora (Director until 19" August
2014)

b) Additional relatcd parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during the
year:

Chief Financial Officer :Mr. Kapil Sharma

Company Secretary - Mr. Nikhil Sethi ( wef. 19" December 2016)
. Mrs. Suman Singh ( untill 30" June 2016)

O3 FELHE ;%’;
O0340C fo»



Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related
parties for the relevant financial year

(Rs in lakhs)

Enterprises owned

or significantly Transactions
Transactions with Related Year Ended Holding Fellow influenced by key with Key
Party Company Subsidiary management Management
personnel or their Personnel
relatives

Reimbursement of expenses

paid on behalf of party

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 - - - -
01-Apr-15 0.19 - - -

Reimbursement of expenses

incurred on company’s

behalf

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 3i-Mar-17 10.86 - - -
31-Mar-16 - - - -
Ol-Apr-15 11.73 - - -

Loan Taken

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 1,214.50 - - -
01-Apr-15 756.25 - - -

Loan (Repaid}

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 2,470.00 - - -
31-Mar-16 50.00 - - -
01-Apr-15 136,00 - - -

Dr. Fresh Asscts Ltd. 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 - - - -
0-Apr-15 - - 224,65 -

Bhusan Arora 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 - - - -
01-Apr-15 - - - 236.50

Amaunt received by the

party on company behalf

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - -




Oriocle Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Enterprises owned

or significantly Transactions
Transactions with Related Holding Fellow influenced by key with Key
Year Ended s 1
Party Company Subsidiary management Management
personnel or their Personnel
relatives
31-Mar-16 3.04 - - -
01-Apr-15 2.75 - - -
Canary Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 - 042 - -
01-Apr-15 - 0.20 - -
Sl.lklllsagar Complexes Private 3 [-Mar-17 } i 3 )
Limited
31-Mar-16 - 0.05 - “
01-Apr-15 - 0.10 - -
Fleur Hotcels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 - 0.00 - -
01-Apr-15 - - - -
H'yaf;mth Hotels Private 31-Mar-17 N ) ) .
Limited
31-Mar-16 - 0.13 - -
01-Apr-15 - - - -
Amount received by
company on party behalf
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mai-16 1.52 - - -
01-Apr-15 3.37 - - -
Canary Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 - 1.26 - -
01-Apr-15 - 0.14 - -
Hyaf:lntla Hotels Private 3{-Mar-17 } ) } _
Limited
31-Mar-16 - - - -
01-Apr-i5 - 0.23 - -




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Notes to financizl statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Enterprises owned

or significantly Transactions
Transactions with Related Holding Fellow influenced by key with Key
Year Ended e
Party Company Subsidiary management Management
personnel or their Personnel
relatives
Sgkl}sagar Complexes Private 11 -Mar-17 } i i )
Limited
31-Mar-16 - - - -
Ol-Apr-15 - 0.25 - -
Collection of Amount
received by the party
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 1.59 - - -
01-Apr-15 - - - -
Fleur Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 - 0.00 - -
01-Apr-15 - - - -
H.yaf:mth Hotels Private 31-Mar-17 } . . _
Limited
31-Mar-16 - 0.13 - -
0f-Apr-15 - - - -
Sgkl}sagal' Complexes Private 31-Mar-17 ) i ) )
Limited
31-Mar-16 - 0.05 - -
01-Apr-15 - - - -
Payment of amount received
on party behalf
Canary Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 - 0.78 - -
01-Apr-15 - - - -
Sl}ki}sagal‘ complexes Private 31-Mar-17 . ) ) _
Limited
31-Mar-16 - 0.15 - -
01-Apr-15 - - - -
Renumeration Paid
Mr. Tarun Lakhanpal 31-Mar-17 - - - -




Orioele Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Enterprises owned

or significantly Transactions
Transactions with Related Holding Fellow influenced by key with Key
Year Ended ‘s
Party Company Subsidiary management Management
personnel or their Personnel
relatives
31-Mar-16 “ - - 2.62
Ol-Apr-15 - - - R
Mr. Natasha Yashpal 31-Mar-17 - - - 34.71
31-Mar-16 - - - 8.53
Ol-Ape-15 - - - -
Balances outstanding at the
year end- (Credit)/ Debit
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 3l-Mar-17 848.34 - - -
31-Mar-16 3,318.34 - - -
Of-Apr-15 2,154.69 - - -
Mrs. Natasha Yashpal 31-Mar-17 - - - 0.69
31-Mar-16 - - - 0.44
01-Apr-15 - - -
Canary Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 - - - -
01-Apr-15 - 0.07 - -
H'yaf;mth Hotels Private 31-Mar-17 ; _ } _
Limited
31-Mar-16 - - - -
01-Apr-15 - 0.23 - -
S.uifhsagar complexes private 31-Mar-17 } ) } }
limited
31-Mar-16 - - - -
01-Apr-15 - 0.15 - -

28, Fair value Measurement

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the company and
provides additional information on the balance sheet, Details of significant accounting policies,
including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity

mstrument




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

a. Financial Assets

Rs in lakhs
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Amortised 1 i
FVTPL morlise FVTPL Armortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost
Cost

Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - 84.79 - 50.79 - 4924
Seclslurlty Deposits (non- _ 10.21 i 11.47 i 11.44
current)
Other bank balances - 170.06 - 158.29 - 146.02
Cash and Cash . 208.09 - 161.97 - 157.19
Equivalents
Tofal Financial Assets - 33151 - 250.00 - 241.08

b. Financial Liabilities

Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 1, 2015

FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost Cost

Borrowings (Non- ) 3,738.87 . 1,257.08 - 2,229.91
current)
Borrowings (Current) 848.34 - 3,318.34 - 2,153.84
Trade Payables - 70.09 - 57.96 - 65.18
Other Non Current
Financial Liabilities ) 19.56 ) 1920 i 1920
O-the_r _C_urrent Financial ) 44.40 ) 20 68 . 311.03
Liabilities
Tf)ta! .Finan(:lal - 4,721.26 - 4,682.26 - 4,779.17
Liabilities

c. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair valne measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions,

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as

follows:




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

i) Level 1

Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

ii) Level 2

Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level 1 for the asset or liability.

iii) Level 3

Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to
observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

The foliowing table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and
liabilities:

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

March 31, 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Tevel 3 Total
Financial assets - . - .
Financial Liabilities - - R _
March 31, 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets - - - .
Financial Liabilities - - - -

April 1, 2015

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Financial Liabilities -

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
payables, bank overdrafts, bank deposits with banks, other current financial assets and liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of loans, security deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities are
considered to be the same as their fair values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates.

29, Financial visk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial labilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial
assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly
from its operations.




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is
supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance fo the
Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk; interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include [oans and
bortowings, deposits and payables/receivables in foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates refates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company
expects the variable rate to decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable
interest rates,

Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 1,2015

Vartable rate borrowings

2,141.72

4,575.42

3,375.64

Fixed rate borrowings

2,458.00

1,293.12

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on
that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other
variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating
rate borrowings, as follows:

Effect on profit
before tax

Increase/decrease in
basis points

Ry in lakhs

31-Mar-17
50 10.25
-50 (10.25)
31-Mar-16
50 5.24

-50 (5.24)




Ovriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Liquidity risk

The company's principal source of liquidity is cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is
generated from operations. The company has no outstanding bank borrowings. The company believes
that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is
perceived

As of March 31, 2017, the Company had a working capital of Rs. (640.41) lakhs including cash and
cash equivalents of Rs. 208.09 lakhs. As of March 31, 2016, the Company had a working capital of
Rs. (3,178.63) lakhs including cash and cash equivalents of Rs.161.97 lakhs.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has no exposute in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits
with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a
customer is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in
terms of number of days and amount,

An impairment analysis is petformed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 7. The Company does not hold collateral as
security.

Rs in lakhs

Ageing March 31, 2017 March 31,2016 | April 1, 2016
Not due - - -

0-60 days past due 75.54 33.88 35.25
61-120 days past due 5.38 8.56 6.34
121-180 days past due 1.96 0.67 4.34
180-365 days past due 1.12 7.05 2.16
365-730 days past due 1.59 1.24 1.15

more than 730 days 0.18 - -




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Provision for doubtful debts (including provision for expected credit loss)

Rs in lakhs

Ageing March 31, | March 31, | April 1,
2017 2016 2015
Not due - - -
0-60 days past due 0.36 0.05 0.56
61-120 days past due - - -
121-180 days past due - - -
180-365 days past due - - -
more than 365 days 1.91 1.86 -

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts — Trade receivables (including provision for

expected credif loss)

Rs in lakhs

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Provision at beginning 1.91 0.56 -
Addition during the year 0.36 1.35 0.56
Reversal during the year - - -
Utilised during the year - - -
Provision at closing 2.27 1.91 0.56

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a

shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The

Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the
concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has
access (o a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled

over with existing lenders.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

Rs in lakhs

On demand Less than 3 3 to 12 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
months months
Year ended
March 31, 2817
Borrowings 848.34 - 12.30 1,785.87 1,953.00 4.599.72
“Trade and other 70.09 i i i i 70.09
payables
Financial Liabilities B 5146 - - - - 51.46
969.89 - 12.50 1,785.87 1,953.00 4,721.26




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended

March 31, 2016

Borrowings 3,318.34 - - },257.08 - 4,575.42

Trade and other 5796 ] i i i 5796

payables

Financial Liabilities 48.88 - - - - 48.88
3,425.18 - - 1,257.08 - 4,682.26

As at April 1, 2015

Borrowings 2,153.84 - 285.00 2,229.91 - 4,668.76

Trade and other 65.18 i i ) i 65.18

payables

Financial Liabilities 45.23 - - - - 4523
2,264.26 - 285.60 2,229.91 - 4,779.17

30, Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings,

trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

31 March
-il 20
March 31, 2017 2016 1 April 2015
Borrowings (Note 11 & 13) 4,587.21 4,575.42 3,161.96
Trade payables {Note 13) 70.09 57.96 65.18
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) 208.09 161.97 157.19
Net debt 4,449.21 4,471.41 3,069.95
Total capital ( Note 9 & 10) 198.16 244.13 209.25
Capital and net debt 4,647.37 4,715.54 3,279.20

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things,
aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings

that define capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and

borrowing in the current period.
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Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended March 31, 2017 and 31 March 2016.

31, Fivst-time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2017, are the first the Company has prepared
in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable
for periods ending on 31 March 2017, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing
these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at I April 2015, the
Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the
Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at 1 April
2015 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Exemptions applied

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain
tequirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions:

e Property Plant & Equipment - As permitied by IND AS 101, the Company has elected 1o continue
with the carrying values under previous GAAP for all the items of property, plant & equipment.
The Same selection has been made in respect of Intangibles Assets. The Carrying value of property
plant and equipment as aforesaid are after making adjustments relating to decommissioning
liabilities.

Estimates

The estimates at 1 April 2015 and at 31 March 2016 are consistent with those made for the same dates
in accordance with Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies)
apart from impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model where application of
indian GAAP did not require estimation.
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Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Company reconciliation of profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2016

year

Particulars Indian GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Revenue from operations 806.51 - 806.51
Other income 28.19 (0.87) 27.31
Total Income 834.70 (0.88) 833.82
Expenses

Cost of food and beverages consumed 73.01 - 73.01
Employee benefits expense 159,99 042 160.41
Other expenses 277.63 0.06 277.69
Total expenses 510.63 .48 511.11
Earnings before interest, tax, 324.07 (1.36) 32271
depreciation and amortisation

(EBITDA)

Finance costs 156.76 3528 192.04
Depreciation and amortization expense 109.76 - 109.76
Finance Income (12.67) (i2.67)
Profit before tax 70.22 (36.64) 33.58
Tax expense:

(1) Current tax - - -
Profit for the year 70.22 (36.64) 33.58
Other comprehensive income

Remeasurements of defined bencfit plans - 1.30 1.30
Total Comprehensive Income for the 70.22 (35.34) 34.88
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2015 and March 31, 2016 and profit or foss for
the year ended March 31, 2016

Financial Assets

Under Indian GAAP, the Company had created provision for impairment of receivables consists
only in respect of specific amount for incurred losses. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has
been determined based on Expected Loss model (ECL).

Financial Liability

Under Indian GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings are amortised
upfront and charged to profit or loss for the period. Under Ind AS, transaction costs are included
in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to profit or loss using the
effective interest method.

Under Indian GAAP, Redeemable Preference Shares are accounted as share capital. Under
INDAS these Redeemable Preference Shares are splited into debt and equity based on effective
interest rate.

Defined benefit liabilities

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-
employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost,
including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit of loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements
[comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability] are recognised immediately in
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCL

Other comprehensive income

Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OCI)
separately. Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit or profit or loss as per
Ind AS.

Statement of cash flows

The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of
cash flows.
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32,

November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 are as provided in the Table below:

The details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th

Rs in lakhs

SBNs Other Total

denomination notes
Closing cash in hand as on 08 November 2016 0.93 0.21 1.13
(+) Permitted receipts - 4.37 4.37
(-} Permitted payments - 2.53 2.53
{(-) Amount deposited in Banks 0.93 0.90 1.83
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016 - 1.15 1.15

33. Segment Reporting

The Company is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a
single unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the requirements of Ind

AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about geographical areas

The Company has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Company as
per the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about major customers

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue

34. Supplementary Statutory Information
Rs in lakhs
34,1 | Earnings in foreign currency (Accrual basis) March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Room, Restaurant and other services 34,51 36.05
34.51 36.05
Rs in lakhs
34.2 | Expenditure in foreign currency (Accrual basis) March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Commission / Advertisement and business promotion 9.35 547
9.35 5.47
34.3 | Value of imports calculated on CIF basis March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Capital goods - -
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35, Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.

March31,
2017

March31,
2016

April 1, |
2015

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

Nil

Nil

Nil

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year

Nii

Nil

Nil

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006,

Nil

Nil

Nil

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of]
each accounting year; and

Nil

Nil

Nil

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

Nil

Nil

Nil

As per our report of even date

For APAS & Co.
Firm Registration No. 000340C
Chartered Accountants

b

N

SUMIT KATHURIA # Yashpal

Partner Whyle Time Director

Membership No. 520078 DINAN07384326
(\J

Place : New Delli Nikh Sethi

Compatyy Secretary
Date : June 13, 2017

fb)\;\f\g" ./”"

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Oriole Dr Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Raj esh’@r

Director
DIN: 05251730

da

Kapil Sharma

Chief Financial Officer




